
IMPROVING LIVES SELECT COMMISSION 
 
Venue: Town Hall, Moorgate 

Street, ROTHERHAM.  
S60 2TH 

Date: Tuesday, 31st October, 2017 

  Time: 5.30 p.m. 
 
 

A G E N D A 
 
 

There will be a pre-briefing for all members of the Improving Lives Select 
Commission at 4.00 p.m. 

 
 
1. To consider whether the press and public should be excluded from the meeting 

during consideration of any part of the agenda.  
  

 
2. To determine any item(s) the Chairperson is of the opinion should be 

considered later in the agenda as a matter of urgency.  
  

 
3. Apologies for absence.  
  

 
4. Declarations of Interest.  
  

 
5. Questions from members of the public and the press.  
  

 
6. Communications.  
  

 
7. Minutes of the previous meeting held on 12th September, 2017 (herewith) 

(Pages 1 - 7) 
  

 
8. Outcomes from the Pause Rotherham Scoping Exercise (herewith) (Pages 8 - 

45) 
  

 
9. Date and time of the next meeting - Tuesday, 14th November, 2017 at 

5.30 p.m.  
  

 

 



 
Improving Lives Select Commission membership:- 

  
Chair – Councillor Clark 

Vice-Chair – Councillor Cusworth 
  

Councillors Beaumont, Brookes, Cooksey, Elliot, Fenwick-Green, Hague, Ireland, 
Jarvis, Khan, Marles Marriott, Pitchley, Senior, Short, Julie Turner and Tweed (18).   

  
Co-opted members:-  Ms. Jones (Voluntary Sector Consortium), Mrs. Clough (ROPF: 
Rotherham Older Peoples Forum) for agenda items relating to older peoples’ issues. 
  

 
Sharon Kemp, 
Chief Executive.   
  
 



IMPROVING LIVES SELECT COMMISSION - 12/09/17 1B 

 

IMPROVING LIVES SELECT COMMISSION 
Tuesday, 12th September, 2017 

 
 
Present:- Councillor Clark (in the Chair); Councillors Beaumont, Cooksey, Elliot, 
Fenwick-Green, Jarvis, Marles, Pitchley and Senior. Co-opted Member: Joanna 
Jones from Children and Young People Voluntary Sector Consortium. 
 
Also in attendance: John Rowley and Julie Saville-Fell for Item 83  
 
Apologies for absence:- Apologies were received from Councillors Allcock, Brookes, 
Hague, Khan Marriott and Watson (Cabinet Member for Children and Young 
People’s Services).  

 

 

 
76. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 
 There were no declarations of interest. 

 
77. QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AND THE PRESS 

 
 There were no questions from members of the public and the press. 

 
78. COMMUNICATIONS 

 
 Corporate Parenting Panel (CPP) 

Councillor Cusworth provided Members of the Select Commission with a 
written summary of the last meeting of the CPP which has been circulated 
by email. 
 
Health Safety and Welfare Panel 
The Chair asked the Senior Adviser (Scrutiny and Member Development) 
to re-circulate details to members of this Committee and seek expressions 
of interest. 
 
Co-optee 
The Chair asked that the best wishes of the Committee be passed onto to 
Mrs Clough, co-optee from Rotherham’s Older People’s Forum. 
 

79. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING HELD ON 25TH JULY 2017  
 

 Resolved:- That the minutes of the previous meeting of the Improving 
Lives Select Commission, held on 25th July 2017, be approved as a 
correct record. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 1 Agenda Item 7



2B  IMPROVING LIVES SELECT 

COMMISSION - 12/09/17  

 
80. SCRUTINY REVIEW - ALTERNATIVE MANAGEMENT 

ARRANGEMENTS FOR CHILDREN'S SERVICE IN ROTHERHAM  
 

 (CLLR CUSWORTH TOOK THE CHAIR FOR THIS ITEM) 
 
Cllr Maggi Clark introduced the report as Chair of the review, thanking 
other councillors and officers for their input and support. In October 2016, 
(former) Lead Commissioner Sir Derek Myers wrote to the Leader of the 
Council and the Chief Executive, and asked that the Council consider the 
lessons learnt from other Alternative Management Arrangements (AMAs) 
in children’s services. The report set out the latest analysis and current 
thinking of the Improving Lives Select Commission’s cross-party review 
group on the range of AMAs for children’s services which might secure 
the long-term success of Rotherham’s Children and Young People’s 
Services (CYPS). It evaluated the relative strengths and challenges of the 
primary options available to the Council and provides initial 
recommendations for future management arrangements. 
 
The supporting evidence underpinning this report was gathered through 
visits/conversations with other areas to identify the impact their delivery 
arrangements had on improvements. In addition, Isos Partnership (with 
the support of the Local Government Association) used an independent 
research methodology to enable an objective assessment of the model/s 
most likely to secure sustainable improvements. Alongside this 
assessment, external peer reviews, practice partner feedback, 
Commissioner’s reports, and Ofsted monitoring visits were also used to 
assess progress and improvements that have been made in CYPS. An 
option appraisal was also undertaken to provide an objective analysis of 
the range of alternative management arrangements available to the 
Council.  
 
The review concluded that given the improvements made over the last 
two years a Practice Partner model would secure the most rapid and 
sustainable improvements in the short term (two years) and present the 
lowest risk to the Improvement journey. In particular, its evidence 
suggested that the Practice Partner model will:  
 
- Establish the right balance of political ownership, oversight and 
accountability for CYPS at the same time as rigorous external 
challenge; 

- Enable the good progress being made on the improvement 
programme to continue at an accelerated pace with minimal 
disruption to partners, wider council priorities or management focus; 
and  

- Avoid high transition and operating costs associated with each of 
the AMAs and enable spend to be focused on front line delivery. 

 
The review acknowledged that the peer practice partner model is by 
definition temporary. Once there is consistent good quality front-line 
practice, the Council will actively consider other options to work with 

Page 2



IMPROVING LIVES SELECT COMMISSION - 12/09/17 3B 

 

others through integration, collaboration or further commissioning if this 
would secure more rapid and sustainable improvement. 
 
Discussion ensued on the report with the following issues raised/clarified:- 
 
The Chief Executive commended the work undertaken by Members in this 
review. The option appraisal was steered by key principles arising from 
the review and independent research. The learning from the review had 
been shared with partners and received positively.  
 
Clarification was sought on the role of overview and scrutiny in authorities 
with alternative management arrangements. It was stressed that the 
importance of ongoing external scrutiny, support and challenge would be 
central to considering options for future delivery. This included a principle 
that strong oversight of children’s services should be maintained by 
elected members, which would involve exercising their corporate 
parenting and scrutiny roles (and in case of lead member statutory 
responsibilities) to secure the best outcomes for children and young 
people in Rotherham. 
 
Resolved: 

1) That Improving Lives Select Commission approve the report 
and recommendations as outlined in Section 11 of Appendix 
1; 

2) That Improving Lives Select Commission forward the 
scrutiny review to Cabinet and Commissioners for their 
consideration; 

3) That the response of Cabinet and Commissioners be fed 
back to this Committee; and 

4) That the Review Group reconvenes to consider the 
additional learning points from the review and these be fed 
back to the Senior Leadership Team for consideration. 

 
81. SPECIAL EDUCATIONAL NEEDS AND DISABILITY (SEND) 

SUFFICIENCY STRATEGY UPDATE    
 

 The Head of Inclusion, Education and Skills provided an update on the 
Special Educational Needs and Disability (SEND) Sufficiency Strategy. 
The Primary mainstream school population has increased by 15% and the 
Secondary mainstream school population has increased by 1% since 
2010. As the primary pupil population has increased in recent years, there 
has been additional demand placed on the Special Educational Needs 
and Disability (SEND) provision currently available within the Borough.  
 
Following completion of the SEND sufficiency analysis (see Appendix 1), 
an additional 125 SEND places will be needed across the Authority to 
meet current and expected future demand up to 2021. 75 places are 
required to reduce out of authority placements by half and 50 places to 

Page 3



4B  IMPROVING LIVES SELECT 

COMMISSION - 12/09/17  

 
add additional capacity and provision within the Borough to support future 
increase in demand from population increase. 
 
The report outlined the timetable for submission of the SEND Sufficiency 
paper to Cabinet and Commissioners’ Decision Making meeting in order 
to gain approval to consult on the planned programme with stakeholders 
including parents and carers.   
 
Discussion ensued on the report with the following issues raised/clarified:- 
 
The pattern of rising demand for SEND service is faced both regionally 
and nationally; these include greater numbers of children living with 
complex conditions, earlier diagnosis and rising numbers of children with 
complex social, emotional and mental health needs. Whilst a recent 
health check from Derbyshire County Council commented favourably on 
the authority’s conversion of Education and Health Care Plans and 
Rotherham’s ability to meet demand pressures, it was recognised that in 
the past there had been poor practice in commissioning and planning 
placements. This was being addressed to increase local placements in 
both mainstream and special schools. The relationship with schools and 
health partners are positive across all provision and conversations are 
taking place with school leaders to ensure that the needs of children with 
SEND are met, with appropriate levels of funding in place.  
 
Resolved: 

1) That the Improving Lives Select Commission receive and note 
the information in this briefing and the progress made towards 
a completion of a SEND Sufficiency Strategy. 

 
2) That the Improving Lives Select Commission seek a further 
update on the progress being made on the SEND Sufficiency 
Strategy, should authorisation be given by Cabinet and 
Commissioners to develop the strategy, and when 
consultation has taken place. 

 
82. CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S SERVICES 2017/2018 QUARTER 

ONE PERFORMANCE  
 

 The Deputy Strategic Director of Children and Young People’s Service, 
with the Head of Service Performance & Planning provided a summary of 
performance under key themes for Children & Young Peoples Services at 
the end of the first quarter in 2017/18 reporting year and also represents 
the monthly report for June 2017.  
 
Good and improved performance in the last quarter includes: 
 
- Good levels of compliance across Early Help, Child Protection and 
Look After Children Services 

- Timeliness performance for Initial Contacts in Early Help has 
continued to increase reaching 63.6% engagement within three 

Page 4



IMPROVING LIVES SELECT COMMISSION - 12/09/17 5B 

 

working days compared to 54.1% at the beginning of quarter 1.  
- 41 out of 104 Early Help Assessments were completed within the 
target timeframe of 35 days which equates to 39.4%, a 4% 
improvement from May (35.4%). 

- Performance against the annual target for young people not in 
Education, Employment or Training (NEET’s) was 4.1% against a 
local target of 4.2%.  

- At 15.1% the in-month re-referral rate is at its lowest and therefore 
best performance since monitoring was introduced in 2015.  

- Initial Child Protection Conferences completed within 15 working 
days is good and improved on last month to 96.3%.  

- We continue to have no children subject to a child protection plan 
for two years or more. 

- Use of agency social workers continues to fall. There were 71 
across the service at the end of June compared to 72 at the end of 
May and 78 in April. 

 
Areas for further improvement 
 
- There were 288 contacts screened in June 2017 by the Early Help 
Triage Team which shows a decrease of 53 when compared with 
the previous month (341 recorded in May).  

- Uptake of Early Help Assessment by partners dropped during June 
with 9 out of a possible 97 (9.3%) being completed.  

- By the end of Quarter One data shows that 25% of children aged 
0-5 across Rotherham had engaged with activities in a children’s 
centre (the annual target is 66%).   

- Following low performance in May contact decision making within 1 
working day of 78%, June has seen a further decline to 59.1%.  

- Although the number of new S47s started in June has decreased in 
previous months our rate per 10,000 population for the last 12 
months has increased. (However the outcomes for the completed 
section 47s demonstrates that in the large majority (89.2%) the 
concerns are substantiated.) 

- Compliance in terms of CP plans remains low when compared to 
previous performance levels. 87.6% of children have up-to-date 
plans compared to 96.2% at the end of 2016/17 and 100% at the 
end of 2015/16.  

- Looked after Children (LAC) numbers continue to rise. At the end 
of June there were 522 LAC compared to 488 at the end of 
2016/17 (7% increase in 3 months) and 432 at the end of 2015/16 
(21% increase in 15 months). 

- Of the LAC Reviews completed in June 89.1% were completed 
within timescale an improvement on May’s position of 85.7% but 
below 2016/17 performance of 91.3%.   

- At the end of June 63 of the 522 LAC have had 3 or more 
placements within the last 12 months and increase on the 58 at the 
end of 2016/17.  
 
 

Page 5



6B  IMPROVING LIVES SELECT 

COMMISSION - 12/09/17  

 
Discussion ensued on the report with the following issues raised/clarified:- 
 
An explanation was sought on the children in need figures and rise in 
children in care. The overall trend for children in needs is falling, which 
reflects the developments in early help and developments such as ‘Signs 
of Safety’. In respect of children in care numbers, court judgements 
support the care applications.  
 
Clarification was sought on the appropriateness and timeliness of 
assessments. The Safeguarding Board has issued guidance on referral 
thresholds to reinforce standards and feedback is given to partners if 
referrals are not timely.  
 
Further details were asked in respect of foster placement sufficiency and 
stability. It was outlined that whilst some placements were changed 
because of planned moves, there were some placement disruption and 
breakdowns. Details were provided of support provided to foster carers to 
promote stability. Further clarification was provided in respect of additional 
investment into CYPS although current numbers of looked after children 
was exceeding projections and creating further budget pressures. 
 
An explanation was sough in respect of case escalation from early help to 
child protection and further details would be provided in the next 
performance report. Assurance was given that early help were dealing 
with appropriate caseloads, some of these would be more complex, 
however these would not require a social care input.  
 
Further details were requested on the stretch target for Families for 
Change and if the payment by results would be secured. Work was 
underway to establish how school attendance and employment can be 
improved across the cohort. 
 
Resolved:- 
 
1) Members are asked to receive the report and accompanying 
dataset (Appendix A) 

 
2) That an update be provided be on Family Group Conferencing and 
Edge of Care in six months’ time. 

 
 

83. LIQUID LOGIC PRESENTATION  
 

 The Senior Programme Manager gave a presentation on the 
implementation of the “Liquid Logic” case management system.  
 
There were criticisms of the previous case management systems in both 
the Jay and Casey Reports, resulting in the Commissioner for Children’s 
Social Care asking that a new case management report be 
commissioned. 

Page 6



IMPROVING LIVES SELECT COMMISSION - 12/09/17 7B 

 

 
An outline of the project’s timeline was given from commencing the 
tendering process in February 2015 and implementation activities starting 
in June 2015 - with the new systems going live from the 31st October 2016 
(CYPS) and the 13th December 2016 (NAS).  This process was subject to 
internal checks and balance. 
 
Extensive training and support was given across CYPS and Adults, with 
over 1400 staff trained. Support packages were in place to provide close 
‘one-to-one’ support at its roll-out, with on-going support being provided to 
problem solve as required.  
 
There is ongoing monitoring of developments and implementation which 
is reviewed by project boards.  
   
A Senior Practitioner gave a demonstration, giving assurance about 
oversight and security, triggers, prioritisation and authorisation of tasks 
and accessibility of information compared with the previous system.  
 
Further discussion took place on the implementation process, with input 
from the Deputy Strategic Director and specialist colleagues from the 
Liquid Logic Team. It was outlined that Liquid Logic had also been ‘rolled 
out’ in other local authorities, however, Rotherham was seen as an 
exemplar of good practice, with clear ownership and leadership of the 
project. This was seen as key to the improvement and transformation 
process. The speed of its successful implementation was in line with, if 
not better than, many other local authorities.  
 
Whilst feedback from some staff on its implementation was mixed, it was 
felt that Liquid Logic was a tool to support consistent, high quality social 
work practice. Confidence that this culture is embedding is evidenced by 
the suite of performance information. Assurances were given about levels 
of security and resilience of the system in cases of ICT failures. 
Furthermore, integration with other public sector ICT systems were 
starting to be put in place.   
 
Resolved:-  The Chair thanked invited guests and officers for their 
comprehensive presentation and providing assurance on the 
implementation of this system. 
 

84. DATE AND TIME OF THE NEXT MEETINGS: -  
 

 Resolved:- That the next meeting of Improving Lives Select Commission 
take place on Tuesday 31 October 2017 at 5.30 p.m. (pre-meeting for 
Members commencing at 4.00 p.m.) 
 

 

Page 7



 
 

1. Date of meeting: 
 

31st October 2017   

2. Title: Outcomes from the PAUSE Rotherham Scoping 
Exercise 

 
 
1. Background 

 
1.1 There is an emerging body of evidence about the number of women who 

have children removed from their care in a repeating pattern of care 
proceedings.  Karen Broadhurst, Professor of Social Work at Lancaster 
University, has published a number of reports that demonstrate the scale of 
this issue.   The link to all published reports is included within the scoping 
report.    

 
1.2 This is an issue that affects families in all local authority areas and the 

experience of practioners in Rotherham indicates that this pattern of 
recurrent care proceedings is present locally.   

 
1.3 Whilst Children and Young People’s Services will intervene to protect the 

child and seek the best long-term outcomes, there is often little or no 
cohesive support for the women who are affected. 

 
1.4 Research shows that after a child had been removed from her care, a mother 

was unlikely to get the required level of help to bring about the changes 
needed because agencies were not under any statutory obligation to provide 
comprehensive post removal support. Many of the women had experienced 
very difficult childhoods themselves and were then severely emotionally 
damaged by the removal of their baby. 

 
1.5 Pause is a national charity that supports a network of local Pause Practices 

across the country. The purpose of Pause is to prevent the damaging 
consequences of thousands more children being taken into care each year. 
Pause works with women who have experienced - or are at risk of - repeated 
pregnancies that result in children needing to be removed from their care.   
The programme gives women the chance to pause and take control over 
their lives with the aim of preventing repeated unwanted pregnancy. 

 
1.5 In November 2016, Cabinet asked for Pause to be commissioned to carry out 

a scoping exercise to provide detailed data and analysis of repeat removals 
of children from their mother’s care.  This scoping report provides robust 
information upon which to base decisions about how to respond locally to this 
issue.   

 
1.6 The full scoping report is attached, supplemented with a local cost benefit 

analysis. 
 
 

CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE’S SERVICE 

BRIEFING PAPER FOR IMPROVING LIVES SELECT COMMISSION 

Page 8 Agenda Item 8



2.   Key Findings 
 

2.1 Between 1st April 2014 and 31st March 2017, 130 women in Rotherham had 
434 children removed. Two of these women had 9 children removed and one 
woman had 8 children removed;  

 
2.2 The average number of children removed per woman is 3.3. In other scoping 

exercises nationally, the number of children removed per woman ranges from 
3.0 to 3.6; 

 
2.3 These women have many complex and often inter-linking needs. In 

Rotherham, 60% of the cohort was identified in social care records as having 
experienced domestic abuse. 45% had issues with drug or alcohol abuse. 
32% had a diagnosable mental health problem. 25% are recorded as having 
been in care as children themselves. Many women experienced multiple 
issues; 

 
2.4 The Pause analysis indicates that without intervention, 20 women within this 

cohort would be likely to give birth to 5 children each year. Over the duration 
of the programme this equates to 7.5 children; 

 
2.5 Based on this information and local practice and associated costs, a cost 

benefit analysis has been prepared by Children and Young People’s 
Services.  This information provides an indication of the impact of 
implementing a Pause practice.    

 
2.6 The cost benefit analysis shows a gross saving of £1.09m based on an 

intervention with twenty women.  The cost of delivering a Pause practice for 
this cohort is estimated to be £450,000.  Therefore a conservative estimate of 
the net cost saving (to Children’s Services alone) is £0.64m. 

 
2.7 The cost benefit analysis does not include costs incurred by the National 

Health Service, public health, housing, adult social care, South Yorkshire 
Police or the criminal justice system. 

 
 2.8 There are also wider human costs to be considered.  The mother is likely to 

have already experienced significant trauma in her life, and is then further 
damaged by the removal of a child from her care.  Services would seek 
permanency for  child as soon as possible following removal however, some 
level of disruption is inevitable.  Children who do not experience the best start 
in life may struggle to thrive and achieve positive outcomes. 

 
 
 
3.   Recommendations to Improving Lives Select Commission 

 
Improving Lives Select Commission is asked to: 
 
3.1 Comment on the findings of the Pause scoping exercise and forward these 

comments to the Commissioners / Cabinet for their consideration 
 
 
4.   Name and contact details 

Page 9



 
Ian Thomas 
Strategic Director, Children and Young People’s Services. 
Tel:  01709 822677 
Ian.thomas@rotherham.gov.uk 
 
Jenny Lingrell 
Acting Head of Service Early Help – Transformation Projects 
Tel: 01709 254836 
jenny.lingrell@rotherham.gov.uk 

 
 

Page 10



Document is Restricted

Page 11
By virtue of paragraph(s) 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.


	Agenda
	7 Minutes of the previous meeting held on 12th September, 2017 (herewith)
	8 Outcomes from the Pause Rotherham Scoping Exercise (herewith)
	PauseRotherhamdraftinterimreport Improving Lives


